
Note:  This meeting is being audio and video recorded.  The video can be viewed on the District website. 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting  

Meeting of Monday, October 7, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m. 
Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road 

AGENDA 
Estimated 
   Times 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING

7:00 - 7:05 pm A1. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories

The Greater Victoria School District wishes to recognize and acknowledge the 
Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose traditional territories we live, we learn, 
and we do our work. 

A2. Approval of the Agenda (pgs. 01-02) 

7:05 – 7:10 pm A3. Approval of the Minutes 

a) Approval of the Education Policy and Directions Minutes
of September 9, 2019 meeting  (pgs. 03-05) 

A4. Business arising from the Minutes 

7:10 – 7:40 pm B. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE

B1. Jen Wark, View Royal Elementary School, Educational Assistants 

B2. Farheen HaQ, Central Middle School, Late French Immersion 

B3. Angela Carmichael, Central Middle School, Late French Immersion 

B4. Brianna Day, George Jay Elementary School 

B5. Anjit Haymes, View Royal Elementary School, Supports for Students 

B6. Carrie Peter, Central Middle School, Late French Immersion 

7:40 – 8:40pm C. NEW BUSINESS

C1. Introduction of Student Representative – Shelley Green 
Angela Wang, Oak Bay High School 

C2. School Support Profiles and Next Step (including Forum & Surveys)  (pgs. 06-08) 
Deb Whitten  

C3. Education Assistant Bridge Program  
Tammy Sherstibitoff and Tammy Renyard 

1



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) Oct 7, 2019 Regular Education Policy and Directions Meeting Agenda page 2 

 

Note: This meeting is being audio and video recorded. The video can be viewed on the District website 

 
  C4.  Late French Immersion Program Review   (p 09-18) 
   Colin Roberts 

 

That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 

(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to establish and document a 

process for undertaking a review of Late French Immersion programming 

that takes into account the current Ministry of Education policy on French 

Immersion programs and that includes a consultation process which 

involves relevant stakeholders prior to implementing a change to the 

program, in line with Policy 1163 – Consultation, be referred to the May 

6, 2019 Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting.” be tabled 

until the Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting of 

October 7th, 2019. 

 
  
  D. NOTICE OF MOTION   

 
 

E. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
F. ADJOURNMENT 

 

2




Education Policy and Directions Committee 
September 9th, 2019 – Tolmie Board Room 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Committee Members Present:  Nicole Duncan - Chair, Tom Ferris, Diane McNally, Ryan Painter  
 
Regrets: Board Chair – Jordan Watters 
 
Other Trustees Present: Rob Paynter 
 
Administration: Shelley Green - Superintendent, Deb Whitten - Deputy Superintendent, Colin Roberts 
- Associate Superintendent, Greg Kitchen - Associate Superintendent, Louise Sheffer – Director, 
District Team, Harold Caldwell – Director, District Team, Cindy Graff - GVTA Representative, Jane 
Massy - CUPE 947 President, Jodi Whiteman - VCPAC President, Vicki Hanley – Executive Assistant, 
Note taker 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:09 p.m. 
 
Chair Duncan welcomed everyone to the meeting.   
 
Chair Duncan also recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose 
traditional territories we live, we learn and we do our work. 
 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 
 
  A1. Approval of the Agenda 
 

      It was moved by Trustee Ferris: 

That the September 9, 2019 Education Policy and Directions agenda be approved. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 A2.  Approval of the Minutes 
 

      It was moved by Trustee Painter: 

That the June 3rd, 2019 Education Policy and Directions Committee Minutes be 
approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
  A3. Business Arising from the Minutes – None  
 
 
B. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE  
 

B1. George Jay Elementary / Barbara Lelj 
 
B2. George Jay Elementary / Brianna Day 
 
B3. George Jay Elementary, PAC President / Angela Carmichael 
 

 
 

3



Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
Minutes of September 9th, 2019  Page 2 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 

C. NEW BUSINESS 
 

C1.   Introduction of Student Representatives  
 
Superintendent Green advised that there was no student representative available for the 
meeting. 

 
C2. Parent Education Fund  
 

Deputy Superintendent, Deb Whitten, referred Trustees to the information that she 
provided in their agendas with respect to the Parent Education Fund and how the funds 
were allocated in the 2018-2019 school year. Deputy Superintendent Whitten stated that 
$1,190 of the funding was unused during the year and would be carried over to this year 
for use towards PAC applications. 

 
C3. Learning Teams Survey Results 
 

Director of the Learning Team, Louise Sheffer, referred Trustees to the information that 
was provided to them in their agenda packages and the results of the survey that was 
conducted with District teachers and CUPE staff. The purpose of the survey was to gather 
feedback on the District’s Learning Support Operational Plan’s goals. Discussion ensued 
amongst the Trustees with questions of clarification being asked of Ms. Sheffer and 
Deputy Superintendent, Deb Whitten. 

 
C4. Gifted Education- Trustee McNally 

 
Trustee McNally advised that she wished to withdraw this motion and provided a rationale 
on why she was withdrawing the motion. 
 
Chair Duncan accepted the withdrawal of the motion. 

   

That the Board of Education direct the Superintendent direct the Superintendent to 
provide a report to the Board in February 2020 that provides: 1. Information regarding 
provision of targeted gifted education in SD61 over the last two years 2. Information 
explaining the current and any proposed service delivery model / models of service 
under consideration for the 2019-2020 school year and forward for students 
designated “gifted” in SD61 in order that the Board may consider how best to allocate 
resources to serve the vulnerable gifted student population, before a service model 
that differs from current practice is put in place. 
 

 Motion Withdrawn 

 
 
D. NOTICE OF MOTION - None 
 
 
E. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS - None 
 
 
 
 
 

4



Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
Minutes of September 9th, 2019  Page 3 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
F. ADJOURNMENT 

 
    It was moved by Trustee Painter              : 

That the meeting be adjourned. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:08 p.m. 

5



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Deb Whitten – Deputy Superintendent 

 
Date: October 7, 2019 
  
To: Board of Education 
 
From:  Deb Whitten, 
  Deputy Superintendent 
 

Re:   School Support Profiles  

 

Background 

 

Identifying the “WHY” 

In the Province of BC we have a growing understanding that with the right instructional supports all 

students can be successful learners. We  know that changing demographics and increasing diversity 

requires a collaborative approach to meet the needs of all in our One Learning Community.  

In the Greater Victoria School District, prior to 2016 we had two Behaviour Programs and five Low 

Incidence Programs. As  society has shifted  to a more inclusive community, we too, as a district, 

have shifted. We believe that inclusion is a way of thinking and acting, grounded in the belief that 

with the right supports, every learner can be successful  in their classrooms and schools. Inclusive 

schools embrace the value of our diversity and see our differences as strengths. All students have 

an authentic sense of belonging in their school community and are supported to develop their full 

potential in the academic, social-emotional and physical domains.  

With the restoration of contract language, class size and composition has shifted; to create smaller 

class sizes with fewer students who have designations. This shift has provided an opportunity for 

schools to focus on supporting students from an integrated, multidisciplinary learning approach. 

Within this approach, schools explore best practices regarding instructional and behaviour supports 

for students based on the needs and strengths identified in the student’s Individual Education 

Plan(IEP). Critical to this plan is increasing independence for each child through a gradual release of 

responsibility. With just right supports, students develop and gain supports from kindergarten to 

graduation. 

  

 

6



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Deb Whitten – Deputy Superintendent 

 
Guiding Principles of Inclusion 

Inclusion equitably supports and appropriately challenges all learners. All GVSD members work 

together to create welcoming, flexible and responsive learning opportunities that adapt to the 

changing needs of students. As much as possible, inclusive classrooms are places where students 

do not have to leave to learn; collaborative supports are brought to students in their classrooms and, 

as a result, benefit the full range of learners. At times, dependent on student needs, more targeted 

and specialized interventions are offered to individuals or smaller groups in classrooms or other 

inclusive learning spaces. 

  

Exploring the “HOW” 

Schools receive funding and staffing based on the needs and strengths of the student population. 

While the number of students with a Ministry Designation has increased over the years, so too, has 

our budget to support inclusive learning practices. In addition to classroom teachers, school staffing 

includes teachers who support Inclusive Education, Gifted, Counselling, English Language Learning, 

Indigenous Education, Co-teaching, and Careers. Youth and Family Counsellors and Educational 

Assistants also provide important services and supports. In addition to the in-school expertise, the 

school  has access to services from a range of other professionals such as Speech and Language 

Pathologists, District Learning Support Teachers, Educational Psychologists, Occupational Therapists, 

Physiotherapists and Behaviour Consultants. This infrastructure of supports also includes the guiding 

conditions that support inclusive learning communities; supportive and collaborative professional 

development; and planning and design frameworks that utilize the First Peoples Principles of 

Learning, IEP and support plans, collaborative problem solving and School Based Teams. When our 

school and district staff work with a student who has a Ministry designation the work is directly 

connected to the goals of the IEP which directly reflect the strengths and needs of the student.  The 

program planning is a combination of Strategic Planning (Students are in classrooms with diverse 

peers working on cognitively appropriate curricular goals) and Explicit Planning (Students can be in 

smaller classrooms/groups working on cognitively appropriate or developmental goals).  

 

 

 

 

7



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Deb Whitten – Deputy Superintendent 

 
Working on the “WHAT” 

Our district team is dedicated to developing curriculum, instruction and assessment practices that 

create safe and inclusive classrooms.   Our work is to design K-12 professional learning that aligns 

with the redesigned curriculum across all levels. We strive to integrate Literacy, Numeracy, Mental 

Health and Wellness and Career Pathways into all of our offerings.   Our work is to incorporate and 

design these sessions through a lens of First People’s Principles of Learning and universally 

designed lessons that allow for diversity and individualized student success.  In addition, we 

continue to provide a variety of learning opportunities to enhance the knowledge base and practice 

of our Learning Support Teachers, Counsellors and Educational Assistants to support students with 

diverse needs. Lastly, we continue to extend the expertise and experience of our district itinerant 

staff to strategically complement the work of school based staff.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Next Steps include: 

• Inclusion Forum – November 2019 

• Survey to Staff, Parents, Students – December 2019 

 

 

 

8




 

 

  

        556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, British Columbia  V8Z 1E8   Fax:  250-475-4115 

 

 

 
 
To: Education Policy and Directions Committee 
 
From: Colin Roberts, Associate Superintendent 
 
Date: October 7, 2019 
 
RE: Late French Immersion Program Review 
 

 
 
Background: 

 
During the Boundary Review process it became apparent that there was an emergent need to alleviate 
catchment enrolment pressures at Central Middle School for the September 2019/2020 school-year, ahead of 
final decisions to boundary changes.  Historic efforts to accommodate the catchment enrolment pressures at 
Central have included: District archives moved from Central and the space repurposed to add classrooms; 
addition of learning studios; the conversion of both the computer lab and staff room to classroom spaces; and 
the restriction of non-catchment transfers into Central.  Despite these collective efforts, Central was still at risk 
of not being able to accommodate its incoming grade 6 catchment students for September 2019.  Because Late 
Immersion registration is an open boundary process, a proportion of Late Immersion registrations at Central 
have historically been non-catchment for the school, thus potentially limiting future catchment student access.  
As a result, a decision was made to not offer Late French Immersion at Central for the 2019/2020 school year.   
 
Community members advocated for Late Immersion to remain at Central for September 2019.  Community cited 
concerns regarding access to Late Immersion for the most southern geography of the district, the desire for a 
fulsome consultation process, and that notice of the decision that was very close to the Late Immersion 
registration deadline.   The District responded by soliciting interest from grade 5 Central catchment families and 
established a “catchment only” cohort for Late Immersion at Central for September 2019.  In addition, non-
catchment transfers to Central were restricted, and grade 6 transfers requests from Central to other schools 
were accommodated.  The combination of events enabled access to all catchment students who wanted to 
attend Central.  This, however, is not a sustainable option to negotiate both program placement and the 
accommodation of future catchment students at Central or any other dual track middle school.  As a result, the 
Board of Education approved the following motion. 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct 
the Superintendent to establish and document a process for undertaking a 
review of Late French Immersion programming that takes into account the 
current Ministry of Education policy on French Immersion programs and that 
includes a consultation process which involves relevant stakeholders prior to 
implementing a change to the program, in line with Policy 1163 - 
Consultation. 

  
 
 
 
 

 

Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent          250-475-4117 

Greg Kitchen, Associate Superintendent   250-475-4220 

Colin Roberts, Associate Superintendent          250-475-4220 

9



 X:\Education Policy Committee\2019-2020\October 2019\C4 i Board Memo-Late FRIM-Oct 7 2019.docx 

 
 
Process: 
 
A summary report on Late French Immersion in School District 61 has been prepared for the purpose to inform 
and consult with stakeholders.  The report highlights registration process, accessibility, and historic demands.  
This information has been explored with middle school principals and vice-principals, the Greater Victoria 
Teachers’ Association, and the French Advisory Committee to solicit feedback and recommendations with the 
focus on ensuring viability of the Late Immersion programming while still balancing catchment access to 
neighborhood schools. 
 
Summary of findings: 
 

 SD 61 offers both Late and Early Immersion entry points. 

 Registration is not governed by catchments.  Students can register at the school of their choice. 

 A Late French Immersion entry is offered at all five dual tack schools. 

 There are four dual track middle schools that offer Late French Immersion on the east side of town and 
one school on the west side of town. 

 The historic enrolment demand has filled four classes. 

 For this school-year, 127 of 175 grade 6 and 7 Late Immersion students are enrolled at their “Early 
French Immersion” catchment dual track middle school. 

 The historical trend for Late Immersion registration aligns with the dual track middle school Early 
Immersion catchments. 

 Baragar projections prepared for the boundary review indicate enrolments pressure at Cedar Hill in the 
years 2022-2026. 

 
Next steps: 
 
The District will continue the review later in the month with a view to finalizing recommendations arising from the 
consultations. 
 

 

10



 

 
The Greater Victoria School District is committed to 

each student’s success in learning within 
a responsive and safe environment. 

 

 
 

 

Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District. 

 

Policy 1163  Page 1 of 3 

 
 
POLICY 1163 
 

CONSULTATION 

 
Policy 
 
The Board values attitudes and practices that encourage integrity, respect and 
trust in all relationships.  To this end, the Board expects district, school and 
program level decisions will be made using appropriate consultation processes.  
The process selected will optimize the opportunity for educational and 
community partners to provide input within the predetermined timeframe.   
 
Definition 
 
Consultation is an important step in decision-making (See Appendix A).  It is a 
process, not an outcome, which involves interaction between decision makers 
and those affected by the decisions.  It promotes a two-way flow of information 
and ideas to arrive at better solutions and, consequently, more effective 
implementation of policy and programs.  
 
Beliefs and Principles 
 
Student-focused:  The benefits of consultation are realized when educational and 
community partners are focused on the best interests of the students. 
 
Understanding and Commitment:  Consultation processes function more 
effectively when all parties understand them, have a basic commitment to them, 
and have access to them.   
 
Ownership:  The implementation of decisions is more effective when 
educational and community partners have shared in their development. 
 
Timeliness:  Consultation is more effective when it is commenced at the time 
that the issue being considered is identified. 
 
Transparency:  Communication, trust and open-mindedness are critical elements 
in consultation processes. 

11



Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District. 

 

Policy 1163  Page 2 of 3 

Direct 
 

There are occasions where action is 

required around administrative or 

educational issues.  The Board and 

Administration make these 

decisions without directly soliciting 

the perspectives of others. 

Consultation 

 
Many issues require, or would 

benefit from, general consultation 

with education and/or community 

partners. 

Selective 

 
Some issues may affect only a 

specific individual or group.  

Consultation would 

specifically be requested and 

the feedback considered by 

the decision maker. 

Collaborative 

 
Educational and community partners 

or individuals would be invited to 

participate in a working group, ad hoc 

committees, or community meetings 

on a specific issue.  Collaborative 

discussions on the issue would occur 

with the intention of reaching 
consensus with respect to input 

provided to the decision makers. 

Representative 

 
Educational and community 

partners that could be impacted 

would be asked, through their 

representatives, for input that 

may be taken into consideration 

when the decision is made. 

APPENDIX A - VISUAL DISPLAY OF POSSIBLE APPROACHES 
TO DECISION MAKING 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Negotiation 

 
The Board is a party to various 

contracts and agreements.  Through 

its representatives, negotiation 

seeks to find common ground. 

Broad-Based 

 
Some issues may affect the 

entire school district and/or 

the larger community. 

Consultation would include 

the various methods and 

styles as shown on this chart.  

Advisory 

 
Educational and community partners 

or individuals would be invited to 

participate in a working group or 

advisory committee on a specific issue 

or area of interest.  This group would 

offer advice or make 

recommendations. 

 

Styles of 

Consultation 

12



Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District. 

 

Policy 1163  Page 3 of 3 

Greater Victoria School District 

Approved: January 1990 
Revised: September 1995 
Revised: June 2005 
Reviewed: March 2012 
Reviewed: June 2016 

13



14



15



16



17



18




